T he D&rsey Case:
Little Scottsboro Revisited

by Donald G. Lester

The most publicized Broward County
murder case during the decade of the
1930= was that of the brotal murder of
Robert M. Darsey on May 13, 1533, Not
only did the murder and the resuliant
caseexcite and inflame the community
of Pompano [now Pompano Beach),
Fh:rida, |:|1.|.I'. l.|'|1;: rmﬂ,:rlu,:ruliunm froam
them deeply stirred the entive citizenry
of the county, Because of its racial con-
notations during an era of stringent
segregation, as well as s incredible
duration, the case became popularly
known az *The Little Bcottsboro Case™
after the Alabama case that headlined
the national news during the same
decnde, The Darsey case bounced back
and forth from court tocourt for almost
nine years. [t eame before the circuit
court in Forl Laoderdale threee times,
before that of West Palm Beach two
times, the Florida State Supreme Court

five times, and the United States Su-
preme Court one time.

Megroes constituted o lnrge propor
tion of the Broward County population
I'J.uring the I!:!::H:lzglr rl,r]:!n,'_u-l,:nl:ing' both m
racial threat and a souree of abundant
and cheap labor during the Great De-
pression. The national census of 1930
credited the county with a total popula-
tion of 20,084; a little more than forty-
three percent of that number, or B 666,
lived within the city limits of Fort
Lauderdale, the county seat. Next came
Hull}'wl:u:-ﬂ with a q:i.l::iznl:nr_l,r numbering'
2,869, closely followed by Pompano
with E,E]-i, while Deerfield Im;rw Doy
field Beach] weighed in with a popula.
tiom of 1,483.! Megroes represented
thirty-three percent of the county’s
inhabitants, but because of the exten-
give farming in that area, the Negro
population was heavily concentrated

in the northern part of the county.
While Negroes made ap only about
twenty-five percent of Fort Lauder-
dale’s inhabitants, they constituted
sixty percent of Pompano's people and
ran to about seventy-five percent in
Deerfield.?

A.Il.]"ml.lg’h Broward l:'..nunl_'r' boasted n
cosmopalitan atizenry, it never theless
formed a part of the “Democratic Solid
Eputh.” Invariahly Republicans found
it tough sledding in the political arena,
Democratic party nomination for all
levels was tantamount to election, a
success due to the white Demoeratic
primary, This meant participation sole
Iy by members of the Caucasian race.
Megro influence in Broward County
affairs, political or otherwise, register-
ed practically nil. Somewhat to the
aarprise of many political velerans,
Broward Countians elected natives

Virtually forgotten in Broward County today, the
Darsey murder case was one of the most sensa-
tional news events of the 1930% and early 1940s.
The spectacular nature of the charges and countar-
charges, the atmosphere of racial unrest, and the ax-
traordinary number of trials and appeals kKept the
Darsey case in the public spotlight for nearly a
decade. Al the same time, a number of other news-
worthy events in Depression-era Broward, ranging
from political and judicial infighting to a tragic lynch-
ing, can be directly linked to the controversy sur-
rounding the Darsey case. Eventually its controver-

sial nature took the Darsey case 1o the U.5. Supreme
Court, the first Broward County case to be heard by
the high court. The Supreme Court decision gave
the case its lasting legal significance, setling a prece-
dant in the admissibility of evidence in criminal trials.
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born Walter B. Clark shenff in 1032,
Clark tapped his brother Robert to be
his chief deputy, while he selected A_ T
Marshall o be the warden of the
eounty jail and hired Virgil Wright and
E. C. Goodrich to be his deputies at
large, At the sgame time, F. C, Maddox
presided sz Pompano's police chief,
assisted by R, C. Helton, constable for
the Pompano district. All these law
enforcement officers closely fallowed
the mind of the South in racial matters.
Officials and private citizens walked in
lock-step to preserve segregation and
white supremacy in the deep South.
Opposers dangerously flirted with ous-
ter and ostracism,

In 1433, Broward County comprised
thie Twn:nl.;..‘-:sr«tnnﬂ Judieial Circwil,
ereated in 1927 when Broward was
separated from the Fifteenth Judicial
Circuit of Palm Beach County. Until

elected Governor Doyle E. Carlion ap-
pointed Tedder as expected, and conse-

uently the judge was confirmed by the
Florida Senate,

Giblin, however, stoutly maintained
that he had been appointed in 1927 for
a six-year term, which would last until
1933, Definntly, he refused to step
down, whereupon Fred Dawvis, Attor-
ney General of Florida, started legal
proceedings to oust Giblin, The case
went directly to the Florida Supreme
Court, which divided three agninst
three, and the ouster attempt failed.
Justices Buford, Ellis, and Tervell up-
held Giblin, while Justices Whitfield,
Brown, and Strum opposed him.
Through legal maneavering, however,
Tedder also managed to avoid ouster,
The possibility seemed to exist that
Broward County would have two eir-
cuit judges, for a time at least, Giblin

1948 the Governor of Florida appointed
the cireuit judges, but custom dictated
that the governor would sppoint the
winner of the Democratic primary,
When Governor John W, Martin ap-
pointed Fort Lauderdale attorney Yin
cent C. Giblin the first judge of the
Twenty-second Judieial Cireuit in
14927, he also appointed the city's muni-
cipal judge, Lowiz F. Maire, to be the
atate attorney. The public generally
assumed that the participants in the
1928 Democeatic primary would choose
the cirenit judge for the new term, and
that the selection would be formnlized
by gubernatorial appointment in 19248,
In the 1%28 élection, Fort Lauvderdale
nitorney George W, Tedder, Sr, defeat:
ed Judge Giblin after o bitter contest
which generated hard feclings and
legal contests for vears. In 1929, newly-

resalved the dilemma when he aud-
denly resigned through machinations

which for years many constroed as a
“deal.” A few davs after resigning, Gib-
lin moved to Miami, where he later
enjoved a lucrative legal practice, parti-
cularly as a criminal lawwyer.

It is necessary to keep the raging
Giblin-Tedder controveray in mind
sinee it became the basis of an appeal
in the Darsey case, Georgian Louis F,
Maire won the 1928 pu'.irmi[!,- for con-
tinuance as the state attorney for the
Twenty-second Judicial Circuit. Thus,
in 1933, when the Darsey murder case
arose, devout Methodist Tedder, who
had come to Broward County in 1925
from Madison County in northern Flor-
i, presided over the circuit coart, and
Faptist Maire handled state matiersin
thesame court. Inthe small city of Fort

Landerdale, attorneys often closely
knit matters among themselves, but
just as readily divided when political
plums became the prize. In the legal
arena, one followed the other in politi-
cal appointments. Tedder, for example,
had succeeded Maire as Fort Lauder-
dale city judge in 1925, when, during
the land boom, Maire hoad left his judge-
ship to become attorney for J, Welling-
ton Roe, one of the largest real estate
operators in the city and certainly the
most flamboyant. After the “sillineas™
of the boorn passed, and quickly-made
fortunes went down the drain, commeon
gense provadled, snd Maire returned o
the city judgeship.

Murder victim RBobert Marshall D
goy was o sixty-four year old Pompano
fish merchant. A native of Laurens
Cnuni}'.. l!}cnrgia'l., nﬂml;'-:,r had lived in
FPompano since 19257 He was a mem-
ber of the Pompano Methodist Church.
Abaut 10200 pom., Saturday, Mayw 13,
1933, Darsey closed his fish market as
was his custom and walked home with
hiz day’s proceeds. About two blocks
from his residence he was bratally at-
tacked and beaten. He suffered severs
blows to his head and was robbed of
ahout $75.00, Darsey manuged to stag-
ger or crawl to his house, where he col-
lapsed on the front porch, He never
reguined consciousness and died the
next day, As soon as the crime had been
discoversd, a manhunt began, It was
also called a dragnet, since many Ne
groes were taken into custody. Law
officers and private citizens joined in
the search, and the number of Negro
detminees reached twenty. According to
press reports, low officers rescued one
of the suspects, who had aleeady had o
rope placed around his neck by an
angry makh,4

Funernl services for Robert M. Dar-
sey were conducted Wednesday, May
17, 1533, af the Pompane Methodist
Church by Rev. E. J. Sandifer. Darsey
was survived by three daughters, one
son, three sisters, and two brothers,

At the Broward County juil the num-
bier of suspects wins soon reduced to four,
They were Leell Chaombers, nge twenty-
two, Charley Davis, age twenby-one;
Jack Williamson, age ninetesn; and
Walter Woodard, age thirty-three, Ac
cording Lo press reporis, Dwo young
Megroes, Mack Little and Frank Man-
wel, implicated the four® On Monday,
May 16, a crowd of about fifty Pom-
pano regidents appeared at the sheriff s
office in the Broward County Court-
houwse and said that they wanted the
prisomers, They were told that the sus-
pects had already been moved to the
Dpde County jnil in Miami for safe-
keeping, Some members of the erowd
seemed skeptienl and appeared to be
not ready o leave, Then W, O, Berrey-
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Sheritf Walter R. Clark (extreme left), with the four Darsey defendants (left to right): Walter
Woodard, Jack Williamson, Charley Davis, and |zell Chambers.

hill, the Broward County tax eollector
and wveteran office holder, gave the
crovwd his word that the SUSPECEs wWore
not in the Broward County jail. The
crowd left®

The next day the suspects were
brought back to the Broward County
jail for interrogation. The questicning
wasconducted by members of the Brow-
ard sheriffs office, who were nssisted
by Captain J. T. Williams, & state con-
vict guard. Constable B, C. Helton alzo
had a part in the questioning. Early
Sunday moming, Moy 21, 19EL, confes-
giong were obtained from pll four de-
fendantz. J. W, Coleman, the Broward
County court reporter, was present and
took down the staternents. State Attor-
ney Lowis F. Maire was also present
pnd nsked each defendant individually
if foree or threats hoad been used to
obtain the confessions, He also asked if
any ]:-n:-mim:u. had been made to them,
Eanch defendant replied “no' to both
guestions. Two private citizens, B. B,
Johnson and W. F. Ford, who hap-
pened to be im the courthowse at that
moment, had been called into the jail
by Sheriff Clark to witness the pro-
ceedings.

Enrly the following week, n grand
j1.|.:r:," wis summoned. The members
were: E, E, Hardy, foreman; Floyd W.
Robinson, 3. J, Guyn, J, P, Smeak, 1. 5,
1""\|:|'.|u:rrl.zll.'lr Paul V. ‘-’ﬂguiang‘, dJd. G.
Kaiser, Paul J. Hamrmer, Samuel H.
Blackwelder, F. M. McClain, ©. M.

Clin, George J. Lowery, James A,
Hogan, John R. Maxwell, O. T, Banks,
and Charles H, Helmick, clerk. The
grand jury indicted Tzell Chambers,
Charley Davis, Jack Willinmson, and
Walter Woodard on five counts of first
degree muorder, One count stated that
all fouwr of them had caused the death of
Hobert M. |:|l'|.:rm::,r. The other four
counts stated that each of the aceused
had separately cornmitted the assault
and murder, while the ather three were
present in & felonious manner at the
moment of the erime,

Judge Teddor n|rp|:|inl|;-c| Elbert K.
Giriffis of Fort Laoderdale to represent
Chambers and Davis, and ealled upon
W.C. Mather l:lj-HI'.'ll.L:_-."'.'r\-I:l-l.l-d Lo represent
Williamzon and Woodard. The arcaign-
ment eecurred on Wednesday, May 24,
The plens were: Jack Williamson and
Walter Woodard, guilty; I[zell Cham-
bers and EI‘IHI’I.I":‘I' nliviﬁrnntguilw, The
trial was set for Monday, June 12, 1933,
Jurora chosen for the trial were: L
rence 5. Rickard, foreman: B. B, Sey.
mour, ThoemasJ. Colling, Carl CHander,
J. M. Cain, H. J. Kersaw, Albert E.
Rees, J. L. Guodman, Charles W. Holli-
day, James W, Jacobs, Ernest W.
Sharp, and Henry L. Shackleford,

Baefore the trinl hc—gun,ﬂhuﬂt,_-.' Mavis
changed his plea from not guiliy to
guilty. Thus, Izell Chambers became
the only defendant to receive a jury
trind, The other three were slated for a
hearing before Judge Tedder to deter-

mine the degree of guilt of each one.

The trial spened with John Darsey,
the som of the victim, testifying ns o his
father’s condition and appearance on
the nightaf May 13. He also identified a
wallet and some papers, which were
presented ag evidence, as belonging to
his father, and stated that the elder
Darsey had them at the close of buasi-
ness on May 137 Constable B, C. Hel-
ton of Pompano testified that early
Sunday morning, May 21, he had ac-
companied Charley Davis from the
Broward County jail to a house in
Pompano where Davis had o room,
avis had said that he hid the money
in & hole in a matiress and that he hid
the wallet in a hole in the floor. Helton
testified that he could not find the
maney, but said he did find the wallet
containing the papers exnctly where
Divis hnd smid that it was located = D,
6.5, MeClellan then testified as to the
cauze of death and the nature of the
wounds.®

Sheriff Walter K. Clark and a number
af deputies were called to testify con-
cerning the questioning of the defen-
dants. Elbert B, Griffis, representing
Chambers, said that he anticipated the
intred uction of “an alleged confession.”
He asked that the jury retire to the jury
raam so that the court could determine
the admissabality of “the alleged con-
I'Lﬂ:iun."'[']'mc_:-uurl. ;Jgrw,:d.il.nd thcjur_l.r
retired, 10

While the jury was out, Sheriff Clark
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testified that he hod taken the prison-
ers tothe Dade County jail on Monday,
May 25 However, he said that he had
taken only Izell Chambers and Jack
Willinmson., Captain J. T. Williams,
the state convict guard, accompanied
the sheriff on that trip. The two de-
fendants were brought back to the
Broward County jail the next day. On
the return trip, bwo curs were used.
Deputies Robert Clark and Viegil
Wright and Constable R C. Helton
pocompanied the sheriff, riding in the
lead car with the two prisoners, while
the sheriff followed in his car. The sher-
ifLeeid that he had moved the prison-
aaked Shvde County becpuse he fenred
and back.ence in Browand County, In
oners ifs examination, Elbert B, Griffis
asked Sherff Clark if the trig to Miami
and back could have fghtened the pris-
oners infe confessing. Loais F. Maire
objected mr_]-mr.quentinn.al.al.inf thatit
wiis just speculation. Judge BT Ve
ruled the objection, and the sherifT an.
gwered, “no,"!

Griffis then said, “1 object to this con-
fession [sic.]" ' He went on to explain
that he did not object to Chambers'
confession, but did object to the confes-
gions of the other three defendants,
Griffis said, in effect, that they had a
right to eonfess for themselves, but that
they had no right to implicate Cham-
bers. He contended that they showld be
proeduced as stale witnesses subject to
normal cross examination, but that
their writien confezsions shoald not be
read to the court. Judge Tedder over-
ruled thiz objection, and the jury re
turned to the jury box.'® The confes
siong were then read. Three of the
defendants said that [zell Chambers
was the first one to suggest the robbery,
Chambers asserted that it had been
Walter Woodard who had first suggest-
ed it. All four of the aceused, including
Charley Davis, spid that Davis had hit
Hobert Dursey. Three of them said that
Daviz had landed two blows. Davis
himszelf confessed that he had hit the
victim one time, the second blow, while
Jack Williamson had struck the first
hlow, All agreed that the wenpon used
by each of them hed been o stick (or
club), There was testimony that Walter
Woodard had hod o hammer at the
seene of the crime, but no one eould
testify that he had hit Diarsey with the
hammer. One of the four stated that
Waood wrd had swung at the victim with
the hammer, but might have missed.
Mot ane of the four confeasions said
that Izell Chambers had landed any of
the hlows. All agreed that Davis haod
gotten most of the money. Walter Wood-
ard had gotten just $1.30 in change.
All agreed that Divis had been the last
one i on Lhae |.|-1-n-1.. He nppa:rently had
become aware of it during the middle of

the afternoon on that fateful Saturday.

Following the reading of the confes-
siona, Charley Davis, Walter Woodard,
and Jack Willinmson tosk the stand.
Judge Tedder asked each one if any
foree or threats had been used to en-
eourage confessions. Again, ench reg-
lied, “ne.” All three then repeated the
pecounts given in their confessions. A
voung Negro boy, Mack Little, who
gave his age as fourteen years, then
took the stand and identified one of the
sticks (or clubs) alleged to have been
used in the murder. Elbert B, Griffis
objected to the introduction of the
gticks as evidence, but his ohpection
wis overruled. The state placed in evi-
demce a wallet, purse, hammer, and
three sticks, They were all identified.
Griffis then objected apecifically to the
glick that the other defendants had
claimed was in the possession of Cham-
bérs at the scene of the crime.

After this round of legal ekirmishing,
[zell Chambers took the stand in his
own defense. He denied originating the
plot, striking any of the blows, getting
any of the money or knowing whathad
happened toit, He admitted being pres-
ent during the assault on Robert Dar-
gey, and he said emphatically, 1 was
six or seven yvards away when Charley
Diavis hit that man™H

Elbert B. Griffis told the jury that
Teell Chambers was not guilty of mur-
dier, that he did not know that the oths
ers had planned to hit Darsey, although
he did admit knowing that they had

lanmed to rob him. The jury was oot
or thirty minutes before returning
with m verdicit. For the first time in
Broward County history, a jury verdict
was rendered “guilty of murder in the
first degree” without a recommenda-
tion for mercy, !5

Judge Tedder heard testimony from
Charley Davis, Jack Williamson, and
Walter Woodard to determine the de
gree of guilt of each one. He again
asked if any foree or threats had been
used to secure @ confession. For the
third time, each replied, “no.” At the
conclusion of the testimony, each de-
fendant asked for the mercy of the
court, W. H. Mather asked the judge to
take into consideration the dizadvan:
tages his two clients, Williamson and
Woodard, had faced as poor, Megro
farm laborers.

Judge Tedder then sentenced cach of
the four defendants to desth in the
eleciricchair, This was the first tirme in
Broward Cqmn.l:.:,r ]I:i:l:tl:q,r that the death
sentenee hid been imposed. In fromt of
a courtroom packed with people from
Pompane, Tedder congratulated the
law officers, particularly the Broward
Sheriff Department, for the profes
sionalism displayed in the case. In par-
ticular, he praised the law officers for

their professional skill in obtaining
confessions without use of threats,
force, or promises, 16

With a flourish, George A. Worley,
noted Miami attorney, stated immedinte
Iv after the sentencing that he would
look into the case of Charley Davis and
would consider the possibility of an
appeal. Worley declared that a North
Caroling attorney friend had asked
him to do so. Davis® relatives had re-
quested the helpof the tarheel attorney.
Worley's interest, however, soon sub-
gided, and nothing came of his threa-
tened appeal.i?

Governor Dave Sholtz signed the
death warrants for the condemned
men, and the executions were set for
Monday, August 7, 1933, The Faort
Lauderdale Deily News proudly an-
nounced that Broward County was
about to make history. The execution of
[zell Chambers, Charley Davis, Jack
Williamson, and Walter Woodard “will
be the first quadruple execution in Flor-
ida history.”18 Suddenly I, W, Perkins,
a Jackeonville Negro attorney, entered
the case. Dramatically, hecharged that
the confessions had been abtained by
force, threats, and torture," Broward
officials indignanily dented the allega-
tions. In particular, Sherff Walter H.
Clark emphatically denied that he had
ahused the prisoners, In his usual low-
key mannerof speaking, he declared, 1
didn't beat them. | protected them.
With Perkins’ charges reverberating
through Broward County official cir-
cles, the Florida Supreme Court grant-
ed a stay of execution on August 5,
1933, less than forty-eight hours before
the scheduled execution date.

The Florida Supreme Court set a date
for the sty of execution hearing, bt
Perkins, with good reason, delayed
sending the proper papers. Instead, he
asked for a delay because of “the abso-
lute insanity of Charley Davia."#1 The
Supreme Court granted a thirly day
continuance. Davis apparently regain-
ed his mentnl balance sinee this was
the last that was ever heard of his men-
tal problems. When the hearing finally
began, Cary I Landis, the Attorney
General of Florida, argued the case for
the state, Mo unexpectedly, the Su-
preme Court dismissed the appeal,
whereupon Governor Sheltz let it be
known that he would gign the new
death warrants suon after Mew Year's
Day, 1934.2 Naot long after the death
sentence had been upheld, D, W, Per.
kins dropped out as suddenly as he had
dropped into the cose,

8, I MeGill, Jacksonville Negro at-
torney and sentor partner with Robert
Crawlord in the law firm of Me(Gill and
Crawford, then entered the case.
MeGill, as it tarned out, would be an
and off the case for the next eight years,
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Like Perkins, the new attorneys charged
the confessions had been forced for
they had been obtained by coercion,
including beatings and threats, Farth-
ermore, they charged the defendants
had been worn down during the ques-
tioning by being made to walk back
and forth acrass the jnilhouse floor
throughout the night. MeGill and Crpw-
ford nlso produced affidavits signed by
Dr. K. L. Brown and Dr. C. Frederick
Munean, twao Neg’m ph]m:ici.ﬂl‘lﬂ: from
Jacksanville, which stated that the de-
fendants had scars on them indicating
recent physical abuse, Using imposing
medical terminology, the doctors min-
utely described the location nnd extent
of the scars =

Impressed by the case presented by
the legal and medical experts in behalf
of the defendants, the Florida Supreme
Court ordered n rehearing of the case
and setJanunry 16, 1934, aa the rehear-
ing date. Working against the clock,
MeGill moved heaven and earth in an
attempt to obtain a Writ of Errar, Ta
ohtain the writ, he knew he would have
to present new evidence that was not
available at the time of the trial in
Broward County. In addition, MeGill
planned o prove that his clients had
not been allowed to give testimony
relevant to the case. At the rehearing,
MeGill presented evidence that his
clients had been foreed by the authori-
ties to confess to a erime they had not
committed, During his presentation of
the case for the state, Cary D. Landis,
the Attorney General of Florida, con-
tinually emphasized that during the
trial, Judge Tedder had asked each of
the defendants if force or threats of
foree had been used, and each of them
had replied “noe."”

The Florida Supreme Court took the
case under advisement, and on Janua-
ary 22, 1934, gave the four defendants
the right to petition the Broward Cir-
cuit Court for the issuance of a Writ
of Errar, The court also directed MeGill
to deliver the necessary legal papers
into the possession of the Broward
County court officials within thirty
days.

Although somewhat exasperated by
the dilitoriness of the defendants' at-
torneys, Broward County court offi-
cials waited and waited for the legal
papers, As the deadline for the delivery
of the papers approached, the Fort
Lawderdale Daily News prematurely
apeculated that “MeGill [had] dropped
the nglpeal." The paper advanced two
possible reasons. The first was that
MeGill really wanted to be turned down
by the Florida Supreme Court so that
he would have grounds for an imme-
diate appeal to the United States Su-
preme Court. In other words, the Daily
News speculated, he wanted to get the

cnse outof state hands and into federal
huands, The second possible reason ad-
vanced by the Daily News was that the
group or groups that were backing
MeGill had run out of funds.® The
deadline of midnight, February 21,
LG4, passed with no materinl being
received nor any word forthcoming
from Me(Fill. The Broward officials
were now convinced that the case was
clased, and that the only action re-
maining was for Governor Sholiz to set
i new exeeution date, But the Broward
court officials had underestimated
MeGill's resoureefulness, The neces-
aary papers arrived on Febroary &3,
thirty-six hours after the deadline, The
postmark bore the date of February 21,
1934, It seemed abvious to many abe
aervers that the late mailing had been
deliberate. MceGill, by all indications,
impressed the authorities as being a
competent attorney who obviously
knew how to prepare substantive legal
briefs. He also appeared to be conscien-
tious. Throughout the case, however,
MeGill's proceedure seems to have been
to slow down and to delay the pro-
ceedings.

Judge Tedder held a hearing on
March 9, 1934, to decide whether to
receive the tardy request for o Wit of
Errar. 5, . MeGill elaimed that the
thirty day limit for the reception of the
request began on Januvary 38, when the
Broward Cireuit Court received the Su-
preme Court order. State Attormey
Lowis F, Maire, however, claimed that
the thirty dey time limit began when
the Supreme Court issued the order, on
danuary 22, Maire based his claim on
precedents sel in previous cases, Ac-
cording to Maire, the time limit had
expired at midnight, February 21, thir-
tv-8ix hours before the Broward Cireuit
Court received the neceszary legal pa-
pers from MeGill. But according to
MeGill, the thirty day limit had expired
at midnight, February 24, well after the
appropriate papers had been received
by the Broward eourt,

Judge Tedder refused to accept the
petition. He ruled that the time limit
had already expired, and that he no
longer had jurisdiction.® MeGill again
& led to the Florida Supreme Court,
Wﬂi.ch ruled that the Broward Circuit
Court did indeed have jurisdiction and
direetod the Broward court to hear the
case in order to determine whether or
not the confessions had been foreed, ©
The hearing was set for April 10, 1934,
Intent on delaving the hearing further,
MecGill made an effort for a ten day
poastponement. He sent an affidavit to
the eourt that stated that his mother
wig' serioasly ill in Sanford, Florida,
and was, in fact, dying. McGill also
atated in a letter that he was nesded at
her bedside. He added, T have obeyed

my mother for 50 venrs.” The court,
weary of MeGill's continued deluys,
dispatched Dr. Ralph Lingeman, a
prominent Fort Lauderdale physician,
to Sanford to determine the condition
of her health, Lingeman reported to the
court that MeGill's mother was ill, but
that she was not dying and MeGill's
presence was nel necessary. De. Lin-
geman further reported that MeGill
was nowhere around Sanford and had
not been regularly attending his
mother.

Whereupon, Judge Tedder asked four
prominent Fort Lauderdale attorneys
to serve as advisors and to help him
solve the MceGill problem. The four
lawyers were C, E. Farrington, C. L.
Chanecey, George W, English, Jr., and
Miller Walton. These four attornevs
advised Tedder to allow the continu-
ance, but to ingist that the four defend-
ants be nt for the hearing =

Based on Lingeman's report, and the
advice of the four attorneys he had con-
sulted, Judge Tedder made his ruling.
First, he decreed that MeGill's request
for a postponement due to the impend-
ing death of his mother wasin noway a
legal basis for a continunnce, McGill's
partner, Robert Crawford, could han-
dle the case during MeGill's absence,
Furthermore, Tedder notified Me(Gill
that he had been informed that the
attorney had not been regularly attend-
ing his mother., But after delivering
this rebuke, Judge Tedder conceded
that since the case was o matter of life
of death, and sinee the defendants were
dependent on MeGill's services, the
court would grant o ten day contin-
uan e

Defendants [zell Chambers, Charley
Davis, Juck Williamson, and Walter
Woodard were then tnken from the
state prison at Haiford to the Dade
County jail for safekeeping. At 1000
m.m., April 20, 1934, the four defend.
ants, accompanied by two Broward
deputies and four members of the Dade
County sheriffs office, were brought to
the Broward County eourthouse in an
armored car. Law officers trained ma-
chine guns and sawed-off shotguns on
the manacled prisoners as they filed
from the armored car to the jail. The
courtroom was crowded, and Judge Ted-
der delayed the opening of the hearing
until it had been sufficiently guarded
by Dade and Browsrd deputies. One
half of the room was filled by white
people and one half by Negroes, 2t

In his written appeal, 5, D, MceGill
made many serious charges on behalf
of his four clients. He alleged that the
authorities had committed numerous
abuses against the defendanis, includ-
ing acts of physical violence, keeping
them awake all night, walking them
back and forth, centinually hanging
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them upside down, threstening tohave
them Iynched, and pointing » gun at
them. MeGill alse charged incormpe-
tence on the part of the defense lawyers
at the time of the original trial. He said
thiat they did not have enoogh exper-
fence in criminal law, that they did not
confer with their clients enough, that
they did not object to the confessions,
and that they did not appeal the case.
The main focus of MeGill's literary
onslaught was Captain J. T. Williams,
the state convict guard, who, as the
defense lnwyers elaimed, was not a res-
tdent of Broward County (he was n res.
ident of Palm Beach County) nnd was
not 8 member of the Broward County
Sheriff Department or of any other
Broward County law enforcernent agen-
oy, MeGill charged that Williams wasa
huge man, that he weighed 250 pounds,
and that he beat the helpless prisoners
throughout the night. Another culprit,
according to McGill, was F. C. Maddox,
the police chief of Pompano, whom, he

Jailer A.D. Marshall at the courthouse jail cells, where the questioning and
alleged abuse of the Darsey defendants took place.

P~
Hll )

claimed, had pointed & gun at the pri-
soners during the questioning. The de-
fendants claimed that Sheriff Walter B
Clark was present during all of the
misdesds. They claimed that they were
scarred and bloody as & result of the
beatings. They also claimed that the
250 pound Willinms had constantly
stomped on their bare feet.®=

A the start of the hearning MeGill
dropped his charges of incompetence
ageinst Elbert B, Griffis and W. C.
Muther, He then called his four clients
to the witness stand separately. Each
one recited a horror story about the vio-
lent treatment they had had to endure
before signing a forced confession, Wal:
ter Wouf:rd.upun being questioned by
MeGill, mentioned a bruise, MeGill nsk.
ed, “Is that the bruise? Were you exam-
ined by a certain physician out at the
Jail in Jenoary this vear™ Woodard
answered, "] was examined by two"”
MeGill asked, “Is that the woand now
that vou are talking about on your right

side that these doctors referred to as
‘one linear transverse scar 1% inchea
long by % inches wide situated a little
below the anterior spine?” Woodard
answered, “Same one, that is the same
one right here,” During cross examing
tion, Louis F. Maire asked, “Walter,
how do vou know that this is thewound
referred to in the affidavit as ‘s little
below the anterior superior spine of the
iliven on the right side of the lower?" Did
you ever hear anybody use those words
or expressions before?” Woodard an-
swered, “Wosir, that word is too high for
me. | am just a commeon Megro. I is
uneducated, wouldn't know encugh to
know that that is.®

Omne part of the defendants’ allega-
tions that received attention from
Louis F. Maire during the cross exami-
nation was the part F. C. Maddox, the
police chiof of Pompano, allegedly play-
od in the questioning and threats. The
reason for Maire's interest in Maddox
became clear when the state presented
its case. Maire proved that Maddox
was not even present during the ques-
tioning period. He hod escorted some of
the accused from Pompano to the Bro-
ward County jail, had then gone back
to Pompane, and had not returned to
the Broward County courthouse until
the day of the trial, almost one month
later.

Though McGill had dropped the in-
competency charge against the two
court-nppointed defense lawyera, El-
bert B. Griffis and W. C, Mather, Louis
F. Maire announced that they would
testify. MeGill objected, stating that
since the defense had dropped the
charges against those two attorneys
there was no need to hear their testi-
mony. The state attorney said that since
their reputations had been besmirched
they had a right to establish their ered-
ibility. Tedder overruled the objection,
but Melrill objected again, stating that
the two attorneys, during their testi-
mony, might reveal privileged informa-
tion. Tedder again overraled the objec:
o,

Griffis testified that he had been a
practicing attorney for nine years, that
Judge Tedder had met him on the street
and told him that he was considering
appointing Griffis as defense attorney
to represent two of the accused in the
Diarsey murder case, and had asked §f
Griffis would accept the appointment.
Griffis said that he had replied that he
would accept. Griffis testified that his
fwoo elients furned out to be Izell Cham-
bers and Charley Davis. He added that
he had conferred with his clients, and
said that he gave the best defense that
the circumstances permitted. Griffis
ales pointed out that he had indesd
objected to the introduction of the con-
fessions, but was overruled by the court,
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Samuel D. McGill, skillful Jackson-
ville attorney whose delaying tac-
tics saved the Darsey defendants.

Griffis was asked by Louis F. Maire if
either of his clients mentioned mis-
trentment at the hands of the law offi-
cers. Griffis replied, "no.” He also did
not notice any scars, braises, cots, or
any other evidence of torture or beat-

ings.

ﬁ?. C. Mather testified that he had
been o practicing attorney for twenty
vears and a member of the Florida Bar
for nine years. Mather also snid that he
had conferred with his two clients,
Jack Williameon and Walter Woodard.
In answer to Maire's question, Mather
replied that neither of his clients had
mentioned mistreatment at the hands
of the law officers, and that he did not
see any scars, bruises, cuts, or other
signs of beatings or torture. Maother
added that sinee both of his clients
pleaded guilty there was not moch that
ke could have done for them, Both Grif-
fis and Mather said that the chiel
motive for the guilty pleas apparently
wins o determination to avnicilmﬂ jary
trial, the defendants I'crlinﬂ; that l.hq::,r
would have a better chanes with o
judge, MeGill objected to this testi-
mony, asserting that it would comproe
mige the pogition of the four defendants
during the present proceedings. The
court overruled the abjection.

D, Ralph Lingeman then testified
that he had gone to the state prison at
Raiford and examined the four defen-
dants. He stated that they had scars, but
that lhr::,r wiere old sears and could not

have been as recent as to have been
caused by anvithing that happened dur-
ing the questioning the previous Moy,
Also, an affidavit from the Raiford pri-
son physician, De. A.T. Whitaker, was
introduced which contained a report
gimilar to Dr, Lingeman"s,©

Mext, varions law officers testified.
They all denied that they had used
foree to obtain the confessions. F. C.
Maddox, who was chief of police in
Pompano at the time of the Darsey
murder and who was implicated by the
defendants in the brutal treatment, in-
cluding pointing a gun at them, testi-
fiedd that he was not even in the jail
during theguestioning. Maddoe explain-
i that after he had brought some pris:
oners b the Broward County jail he
went back to Pompano and did not
return to the courthouse until the day of
the trial = ﬂnptum J, T w1"1fl.['|'.|$| the
state conviet guard who was charged
by the defense with being the chief pris-
oner bepter, was not present for this
hearing, but testimony from Broward
lnw officers stated that Williams was
nevier within six feet of any of the pris-
oners during the questioning. Deputy
Robert Clark testified that he was in
and out of the raom where the question.
ing was taking place, and added that
he did not beat or threaten any prison-
ers. Deputy Clark added that he did not
see anyone else mistreat any of the
prisoners

Deputy K. C. Goodrich, when testify-
ing, was nsked by the state attorney if
he had seen J. T, Willinms beat any of
the defendants, Goodrich asked, “Who
isg J. T. Williams™' Maire said, 1
believe that they call him Capiain Wil
liama" Goosdrich said, “0h, Captain
Williams. No, Ichdnnl.aeemmheatany
af the ]:-nacmera "3 One question k
recurring = what was Captain Wil 1
ams doing there? The probable expla.
nation is that he was a friend of Shernff
Walter R. Clark, although abviously he
was not a close friend of Goodrich.

Two jurors,J. N. Cain and ThomasJ.
Colling, testified, and they both said
that they did not see any evidence of
prisoner sbuse, J, W, Coleman, the
court reporter, said that he did not
notice any evidence of mistreatment
when he took down the confessions,
Two citizens. W. F. Ford and B. B.
Jdohnson, who had been called im by
Sheriff Clark to witness the confes-
sions, testified that they did not see any
evidence of beating, torlure, misireat-
ment, or bruises, Several people who
were prisoners in the county juil at the
time the Darsey defendants were im-
prisoned there testified that they did
not see any evidence of mistreatment.

It was repeated many times that
State Attorney Louwis FF. Maire had
asked cnch defendant separately ot the

Broward Circult Judge George W,
Tedder, 5r., presided over three of
the Darsey murder trials.

time of the confessions if any foree had
been used aguinst them and if the con-
fessions were freely given, Each said
“no" tethe qutﬂiiuh of Toree and "ycu"
to the question if the confessions were
freely given. It was also pointed out
that Judge Tedder had asked the same
question of each of the defendants who
had pleaded guilty, and that the judge
had received the same answer IF Judge
Tedder granted the Writ of Ereor, a jury
would have to determine if force was
usied to abtnin the confessions. If Judge
Tedder refused o grant the Writ of
Error, only an appeal to the Florida
Supreme Court could save the defend-
ants from the electrie chair.

Judge Tedder ruled thai the confes-
sions were not forced and were froely
given, thus validating the jury verdict
of the original trial, At the same time,
he dented a rehearing.

On May 8, 1904, 8, 1, McGill filed
new appeal before the Florida Supreme
Court, It was, figuratively speaking, a
bombshell which landed on the Brow-
ard County eourthouse and threat-
ened ta blast the Broward County court
asyatem to bita. The appeal charged that
Judge George W. Tedder, Sr., o pallarin
his church and community, was not
really a judge; that he had abtained his
pasition by frand, deceit, and purchase.
The essence of the appeal was the
charge that, after the Florida Supreme
Court by a three to three vote in 1929
had in effect maintained YVincent Gib-
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lin in office ag circoit judge, Tedder
paid Giblin to resign, Tedder had not
been reappointed to the bench by Gov-
ernor Carlton, since his original ap-
pointment had taken place before the
theee to three Supreme Unuﬂhvn:nsl.eﬁl
The appeeal papers were asigned by
McGill and Robert Uraw&nrd the N
gro attorneys from Jac‘kmnvllle.
well as by A, L. MeMillan, a white I-‘-:un
Lauderdale attorney prominent in
Incal Republican politics. This bt of
legal skirmishing was the only time
MeMillam appeared in the case It is
easy to conclude that it was MeMillan
who peddled this bit of local gossip ta
MeGill and Crawford. It was obviouws
that a “can of worms™ was abouat to bo
opened, Judge Tedder had been serving
ag circuit judge for five years, If the
latest appeal were to be upheld, all of
the circutt court rulings by Tedder for
the preceding five vears might be inval-
wlnted, All dissatisfied litigants might
have clmms Jlﬁ;lli:m:l:. the mumy-ln thi=
event, there would be no way to esti-
mate the comfusion and damage. Judge
Tedder emphatically denied the allega-
tions. He pointed out that during the
five years that he had served as judge
of the lecal cireuit noquestion had been
raisged ms to his right to hold office.
vodder issued a statement:

It 15 to be regretted that after
five yvears of service this effort ia
made to impeach the validity of
all orders and decrees entered by
me, and in addition this is an
wncalled for mitack on my charae.
ter, the evident purpose is mani-
fest at this time. The citizens of
Broward County by an overwhelm-
ing majority in the 1925 election
made me thelr judge. [ was ap-
peinited by the Governor and eon-
firmed by the Florida Senate and
have held a commission for and
aecupied the office since h_'.-'uman-
date of the people, As n duly gual-
ified and commissioned judge, 1
will continue to priside over the
circuit court of Broward Coun-
1.!‘._11

On May 21, 1934, the Florida Su-
preme Court digimizsed the appeal and
in effect stated that the current case
was no place to decide the judgeship
question,® By refusing to consider the
appeal, the Florida Supreme Court up:
held Tedder's right ta be judge.

Having failed with thiz surprising
appeal questioning the validity of Ted-
der's judicial commizsion, A L. MeMil-
lan dropped out of the caseaaauddenly
as he had dmpqed in. | again
appealed to the Florida Supremaﬂﬂurt.
In the meantime he filed a petition for
insolvency for his clients on June 2,
1834, The petition was granted by

Judge Tedder on July 2. MeGill's new
appeal to the Florida Supreme Court
rested on o nomber of grounds, incled-
i

1. The burden of proof [that the orig-
inal trinl had been unfair] rested with
the petitioners [the defendants

2, The court erred in overruling the
ohjections of the petitioners to the intro-
duction of evidence on the part of the
slate.

3. The court erred by denying the
petition for rehearing filed by these
petitioners.

4. The judgment is against the evi-
dence.

5. The judgment is not supported by
the evidemece.

. The judgment is contrary to the
evidence

In his appeal, McGill repeated his
charges that the confessions were ob-
tained by force and threats. He again
implicated Captain J. T, Willinms, the
state conviet guard, as the main cul-
prit, and emphasized that Williams
wins not even present at the recent Wit
of Error hearing. However, during the
hearing, MeGill had not inguired as to
the whereabouta of Williama and had
made no demand that he be brought in
to testify. Thus MeGill was noticenbly
more aggressive in his written appeals
to the Florida Supreme Court than he
was when appearing in person before
the Broward Cireuit Court.

On December 17, 1934, the Florida
Supreme Court reversed Judge Tedder
and ordered a jury trial to determine if
the confessions were forced, The only
thing that the jury was to decide was
the validity of the confessions. They
wiere not bo decide the guilt or innoecenee
of the four defendants

The trial opened in the Broward Coun-
ty Courthouse on Febroary 6, 1935, 5.
0. McGill began by requesting a
change of venue. Then, suddenly,
MeGill announced by leiter to Judge
Tedder that he was withdrawing from
the case. He said that the groups that
had engaged him to represent the de
fendants had not paid him, With
MeGill's crusading zeal apparently
gone, the defendants were “left flat,”
according to the local newspaperd
Whereupon the defendants protested
that the legal process was going on
without Me(sill. A number of business
and political leaders were called by the
state to testify whether or not the four
defendanis could receive a fair trial in
Broward County. Witness after witness
testified that the defendants could in-

receive o foir trial in the county
and ndded that they had seen nothing
in the columns of the Fort Lauderdale
Daily News during the days following
the Darsey murder which wouold in-
flame race prejudice or jeopardize an

impartial trial. One of the defendants
who was permitted to question a wit-
ness asked P. L. Hinson, county com-
mizsioner from Deerfield, if the fact
that the Fort Lowderdale Daily News
had referred to them as the “Pompana
Quartet” did not imply prejudice. Hin.
gon's answer was “'no.” This hearning
put an added borden on the court in
that no supporting affidavits, exhibits,
or testimony were submitted by the
defenge ¥

5. D MeGill reentered the case as
suddenly as he had abandoned it
which would seem to indicate that his
benefnctor had come across with some
money. His first move after reenfry was
to drop the request for a change of
venue and to gain a continuance wntil
February 21.

Accordingly, on Febroary 21, 1935,
the new trial started with 5, [0, MeGill
and Robert Crawford of Jocksonville
present as attorneys for the defend-
ants, The jurors were: Dave Turner,
foreman; W, J, Bolick, C. Anderson
Dickey, Charles E. Anderson, K. 1.
Cablb, I C. Alexander, L. E. Brandon,
. A. Krause, H. K. Gerber, Hugh Hill,
W. W. Bivans, and J. A. Warren.

Ag the trial procesded, the same law
officers denied the defense allegntions
as they had done in the preceding year,
The proceedingswere largely a replay of
the previous hearing, with the excep-
tion that this time a jury would decide
the outeome, The jury got the case on
February 22, about 830 p.m. and re-
turned with a verdict shortly before
midnight. Their verdict: the confessions
were mot foroed 7

Undaunted, 5, I, McGill requested o
new trial for his clients, He made his
appeal on the basis that the court had
erred in charging the jury and that the
verdict was contrary bo law. Jodge
Tedder denied this request for a new
trial, so the only means left for MeGill
to help his clients was another appeal
to the Florida Supreme Court,

The local frustration and disgust
with the cumbersome legal process had
ita tragic aftermath. The result was the
only lynching in Broward County his-
tory. On July 16, 1935, Reuben Stacey,
a thirty-seven vear old Negro armed
with a knife, allegedly attempted to
rape Mrs, J. L. Jones, o white woman,
ot her residence west of Fort Laader-
dale, Mrs, Jones managed to fight off
the attacker. Local citizens as well as
loeal law officers searched for the cul-
prit. Stacey was finally captured near
Deerfield and brought to the Broward
County jail. The evidence against him
was overwhelming. ¥ Broward County
was full of excited people, and a crowd
gathered around ﬁmuﬂhﬂum. The
general impression was that a large
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Lynching victim believed to be Reu-
ben Stacey, killed by a mob west of
Fort Lauderdale in 1935.

portion of the tremendous crowd was
fram Pompann,

Sheriff Walter B, Clark was afrasd
that the county jail would be attacked
by a large foree, and he was uncertain
that he would be able to protect the pris-
oner 4 After receiving approval from
Judge Tedder and Louis F, Maire, Sher
iff Clark decided to transfer Stacey to
the Dade County juil for spfekesping.
I order to beef up security for the trip
to Miami, the shenff depuotized 1. G,
Shuman, Ben Turmer, and W. D,
MeDougald as special deputies, The
sheriffs department vehicle, contain-
ing deputies Virgil Wright, Robert
Clark, the three special deputies, and
Reuben Staeey, headed townrd Minmi.
The deputies found the roads blocked
by members of the maob, who had anti-
cipated the removal of Stacey to Mingmi.
Prisoner removal was what the sher
iff's office had done with the Darsey
defendants in a similar situation, and
the mob was determined that the sher-
iff wans not going to get away with it
thiz time, Hoping to nvoid violence, the
deputies drove to the West Dixie High-
WAy (1.5, nghwny 4410 and headed
gouth. The mob was ready for this pos-
aibility, and forced the deputies” vehicle
off the road near the Seminole Indian
reservation. They surrounded the car
and fercibly removed the prisoner, who
was handeuffed. Stacey was taken to a
spod near the Jones home, was strung
uge Lo free, and his body was niddled
with hl.l"l,!b'i.

The justice of the peace for the Fort
Lauderdale district and ex-officio cor-
oner, Hugh Lester, conducted the cor
oner's inguest.™ When he arrived at the

scene, the body was still hanging from
the tree. Interest in the community was
a0 great that the inguest was moved to
the county courtroom in the court-
house. The coroner's jury consisted of
Jdoe Oliver, W. B, Whiteside, Will J.
Reed, B, O, Giddena, Wiley Hood, and
C. B, Arnold. Many witnesses were
called, and they all testified that mem.
bers of the mob had worn masks. The
coroner's verdict wias that Reuben Sta-
cey had met his death at the hands of
persons unknown 51

The Fort Louderdale Daily Niews, in
n front page editorial, made a direct
link between the lvnching and the Dar-
sey cnse, The editorial was as follows:

The law is mighty and must

vail. A eounty Grand Jury has

ordered to pssemble Tues-

day to investigate the lynching

here vesterday of a Negro who
wis the law's ward.

He was accused of a foul crime
and had been identified definitely
and positively, There is no doabt
but that the svengers "got the
right man."

The erime that he attempted
though his atlempt was futile was
one that has ever stirred man to
personal vengeance and always
will.

The law moves slowly and pon-
derously. That iz admitted. The
exiztence of the fact that teo fee
quently is the course of justice
obatructed by technicalities of the
law and subterfuges of those who
live by its manipulation exists in
Broward County today, The ex-
ample is a quartet of killers sent-
emced to die for a brutal erime yvet
have evaded the penalty that so-
cicty has decreed to expiate their
murderous deed, But two wrongs
have never made o nght and dis-
regard of the law has never
aerved to strengthen it. A crime
hasg been eommitted. Mow thers

are two crirnes. [Lis for the law to
move to determine the facts, to
uphold itz majesty. It is not for
the individual or a newspaper to
pssume the authority of fixing
blame and in determining the re
sponsibality, That is the law's job.

The execution here vesterday
wiped out n mensce to sociéty.
That is pretiy certain, but it ac-
complished that at the ¢xpense of
lyw and order. The law has been
violated and its majesty belittled.
It is for the law to have the final
wprel. 2

A grand jury was impaneled toinves-
tigate the Stacey lynching, The mem-
bers were: B. L. Johnson, foreman:
Valentine Martin, clerk; H. M. Bailey,
Lucian Craig, John P, Cantwell, T.
Myers, Jr., B. B. Hudson, J, W, Priest,
R. L. Wertz, Lonnie H. Bracknell, W, G,
Cook, Yoeman Keen, F. F. Sutton, Har
ley J, Jovenal, Herbert Herring, W, C.
Burkeit, E. C. Makemson, a.m? T. W
Hunmicut.

Twenty-nine witnesses were called,
including the two depuaties, the three
special deputies, John Darsey, and teo
members of the coroner's jury, Joe
Oliver and B. 0. Giddens. The grand
jury cleared Broward officialdom of
any blame for the lynching 23

After the tragic Stacey episode, 5. I,
MeGill appealed once again to the Flor-
ida Supreme Court, as anticipated, and
once again made the same charges of o

confession gained by violence
and threats. On April 20, 1938, the Flor-
ida Supreme Court reversed Judge Ted-
der. The court said that the Broward
Cirenit Court's charge to the jur!.- Wils
incomplete. Tedder should have added
the words “and freely and voluntarily
given” to his instructions regarding
the confessions, Instead, his instroe-
tions to the jury simply stated that the
jury should determine whether the eon-
lessions were forced, with no reference
Lo thetr voluntariness,™

Broward County Sheriff's Department, 1948. Those involved in the D

i
| . \
1 1 1

case a decade earlier included Jailler A.D. Marshall (third from left), Chie
Depuly Robert L. Clark (seventh from left), Sheritf Clark (center), and
Deputy Virgil Wright (second from right).
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This time, o change of venue was
“nlniﬁl, nnd the next trial of the four
necused Darsev killers was held in
West Palm Beach on October 12, 10085,
before Judge C. E. Chillingworth, A
jury was selectad to determine if the
confessions were forced or not freely
given. Onece again, 5, [, MeGill with-
drew from the caze, and two white
pttorneys from West Palm Beach were
appointed by the court to represent the
defendants. They were Sidney J. Catts,
Jr., son of the former Florida governor,
and J. [0, Ziegler, Lowis F, Maire prose
cuted the case and was assisted by J. W,
Sallshury nnd Phil O'Connel]l of West
Palm Beach.

Twenty-four people were summoned
by Maire as witnesses. They included
Thomag.J. Colling and.J. N.e(;:‘a'm of the
original jury that had found Chambers
guilty three years earlier; Sheriff Wal.
ter K, Clark; and depaties Virgil
Wright, Robert L, Clark, and A. I
Muarshall, Also summaondéed were Elbert
B. Gnffis, W, C, Mather, B. B. Johnson,
W. F. Ford, F, C. Maddox, Charles H.
Gaordaon, J. W. Coleman, and K. C. Hel-
tornt — all white. The Negroes who were
summaoned were Percy Turner, Mack
Little, James Little, Claudic Mack,
Frank Manuel, Lonnie Jackson, and
James Douglas,

Eighty-seven men were called for
jury duty. Twelve were nccepted within
two hours. A number of prospective
jurors were asked as to their place of
birth, Most of the jurors finally ac-
cepted were natives of the deep South.,
The entive areny of state witnesses
denied any cruelty or brotality against
any of the defendants. Those witnesses
who were not law officers testified that
they did not see any evidence of pris-
oner mistreatment. Sheriff Clark satd
that the prisoners were guizzed at in-
tervals during the Saturday, one week
after the slaving, a night climaxed by
the confession. The sheriff added that
none of the defend ants were deprived of
gleep for the entire night.

Sidney J. Catts, Jr. cross examined
the witnesses atlength, He stressed the
importance of sleep, The defendants all
testified that they were kept up all
night for periodic gquestioning and
beatings, Catts elaimed that the loss of
sleep waa, in itself, sufficient grounds
to have the confessions thrown out as
involuntary,

Despite Catts” assertions, the Palm
Beach cirenit court jury found that the
confessions were voluntarily given.
They arrived at this decision after con-
aidering the case for fifty-five minutes.
Then, 5. I} MeGill suddenly reentered
the case and immediately asked for a
new trial, which was denied by Judge
C., E. Chillingworth.

MeGill nppealed onee again to the

U.S. Supreme Court Justice Hugo
L. Black, who dellvered the court’s
decision to strike the defendants’
confessions.

Florida Supreme Court, This appeal
stayed any possibility of execution
until the case was decided. Finally,
after a long delay, the Supreme Court
pffirmed the denth sentence for the
convicted killers of Robert M. Darsey
on March 3, 1939, The court overruled
the defendants’ claim that Sheriff
Clark and his deputies had subjected
them to brutal teeatment that forced
them to confess that they had killed
Darsey in & robbery, In affirming the
death sentences, the court pointed ol
that the officers and other witnesses
had testified that there had been no
mistreatment of the prisoners in jail,
and that the defendants’ charges of
brutality were thus unsubstantiated.
This was the fAfth time that the case
had come before the Florida Supreme
Court. ™

An appeal to the United States Su.
preme Court remained as the only
chance whereby the four Darsey de-
fendants could avoid the electrie chair,
8. D MeGill filed his appeal, and the
ease beeame the frst from Broward
County to be heard by the nation’s
highest court. On February 12, 1940,
the United States Supreme Court ren-
dered 15 decizion. The choice of Lin-
coln’s birthday was ebviously no coin-
cidence, even though it is by no means
certain that Lincoln, if he were on the
court, would have voted the way the
justices did in 1944,

In a unanimous decision, the United
States Supreme Court reversed the
Florida Supreme Court. The decision
was delivered by associate justice Hugo
L.. Black, a former United Siates sena-
tor from Alabama and a one time
member of the Ku Klux Klan. The
unanimous decision necepied the

charges of the defendants of mistreat-
ment and rejected the statements made
by the Broward officials.*

While charging Broward law officers
with uging third degree methods, the
courl stopped short of claiming physi-
cal nbuse, The opinion stated: “The tes-
timony is in conflict as to whether all
pelitioners were continuously thresten-
ed and physically mistreated until they
finally in hopeless desperation and
fear of their lives agreed to confess on
Sunday morning just after daylight.”
The court went on te stress that con-
stant questioning over a long period of
timie had worn down the defendanta. In
this regard, the justices wsed the same
line of argument that Sidney J. Catts,
Je. had vsed in the West Palm Beach
courtroom more than three vears
before.

The justices also used exnggerntion
in an effort to make a point. In relating
the history of the case, the Supreme
Coourt snid that the dragnet had brought
in thirty to forty Megroes to the county
jail. Twenty was the correct number.
The court alse stated that, “when car-
ried singly from his cell and saubjected
to questioning, each found himself sur-
rounded in the fourth floor jailroom by
four to ten men, the county sheriff, his
deputies, a convict guard, and other
white officers and citizens of the com:-
munity.” Broward officials had testi-
fied that the defendants were never
surrounded by ten men during the
guestioning antil the confession, at
which time ather people were called
in—Louis F. Maire, J. W. Coleman, and
two citizens, the latter just to serve as
witnesses,

The court decision also made refer-
ence to the defendants as “poor tenant
farmere." lzell Chambers, Charley
Diavis, Jack Willinmson, and Walter
Woodard were not tenant farmers.
They were farm laborers. L appears
that young law clecks in their crusad-
ing zeal did some sloppy research. The
eourt decision also incloded some ir-
relevancies, such as the statement,
“Today asin ages past we are not with-
out tragic proof that the exalted power
of some governments to punish manu:
factured crimes dictatorially is the hand-
maid of tyranny.”® The defense, in its
many appeals, never denied that Dar-
sey was murdered. The court was try-
ing to make a point, but it could have
used ancther example. [t is true that in
many countries of the world there are
manufactured crimes, but that sort of
thing did not happen in this case.

hese ervors and exaggerations by the
Supremes Court are, for the most part, of
the petty variety. The court could have
stoted the facts correctly and still deliv.
ered the same decision,

The Suprerne Court took the defense
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view of the importance of Captain J, T,
Williams in the case, He 15 mentioned
several times, Also, the court men-
tioned the sheriffs removal of the pris-
aners Lo the Dade County jail as proaf
of an unfair trial, ignoring the fact that
auch a removal might have saved their
lives.

The United States Supreme Court
binsed its ruling primarily on the Four-
teenth Amendment, insuring equal
protection of the law to all citizens,
with some reference to the Fifth
Amendment, prohibiting involontary
self incrimination. The court decision
did not clear or free the defendants. It
sirnply diggualified the confessions as
evidence in the case.

Most Froward Countians received
the United States Supreme Court deci:
sion with great dismay. The courthouse
officials continued to deny that durcss
and foree had been used to obtain the
confessions, Sheriff Walter B Clark
emphatically denied that third degres
methods were used and declared, *1'11
rest my proofthat the confessions were
voluntarily given by the fact that in
three trials in Circuit Courts where the
Sherifls Department was the defen-
dant on the zole issgue of whether the
con fesstons were sbisined by duress, 1
was given a clean bill of lealth ™=

The result of the United States Su-
preme Court decision put the case back
into the Flonda courts for retrial, The
number of defendonts was suddenly
reduced to three when Tzell Chambers
Wil insunn. Hi wWas I:.Tnnuﬁl:rrnd Ly l.|:'|¢
state mental hespital in Chatta-
hoochee.®

Judgr . B [_"'.-hi”ingwm‘ih of West
Palm Beach dismissed the original in-
dictment because no Megroes had been
included on the lists from which the
grand jurors were selected ot the time of
the indictment, more than seven years
befores Walter Clork had anticipated
such an occurence, and bad secured
new arrest warranis before the Chil-
lingwarth action. He had the new war-
rianis served on the three defendants,
and Charley Davis, Jack Williamson,
and Walter Woodard were immediately
rearresied. s

A new grand jury was summoned in
Broward County, For the first time in
Broward County history, Megroes were
included on the list from which the
griond jurors were chosen, The three
MNegroes on the list were J. Monroe
Johnaan, Claudie Clark, and Caleb Fol-
aom. Johnson said that he was needed
on the farm, that he was hard of hear
ing, and asked to be excused. Hizs re
quest was granted, Claudic Clark was
ecused beepuse he was not a citizen of
the United Sintes, Calel Folsom was
never called, The grand jurers were: B,
(r. dohnson, foreman: E. E. Marshall:

Sl CHU I LR

Palm Beach County Circuit Judge Curtis E. Chillingworth acquitted the
Darsey defendants in 1942. Ironically, he was himself murdered, along

with his wife, in 1955.

Herbert G. Jones: Frank C. Ghiotio;
Merrill Hearington; Joseph King; [, M.
Jordan; E. P. Dulling; Robert P,
Graves; J. L. Meeks; James W, Moore;
John M. Higgins; W, F. Blackwelder:
Buford N, Giddens; Samuel Black-
welder; R, Lo Wertz; Allan Winter; and
Cabot Kyle, clerk. As expectsd, this
new grand jury indicted Davis, Willi-
amson, and Woodard for first degree
murder.

&, DL MeGill appented to the Flordas
Supremes Court for release on the
munds that the offense mentioned in
the letest indictment was the same
offense reversed by the United States
Supreme Court. The Florida Supreme
Court denied the appeal.

On January 10, 1942, Judge George
W. Tedder, Sr. ordered 0 change of
venue to West Palm Beach 5. I
MeGill agnin withdrew from the case.
Three white lawyers fram West Palm
Beach replaced MeGill. John E. Bollin-
ger was appointed to represent Jack
Williamson, J. [ Liegler to represent
Walter Woodard; and Sidney . Caits,
Jr. to represent Charley Davis, On Feb-
ruary 9, 1942, Louis . Maire went to
West Palm Beach to quash the latest
maotions of the defonse ]awyerﬁ- O

February 10, the defense attorneys
made & motion for dismissal of the
l;:hl,lrgl:.u. Juﬂgr C. E, Ehi]“ngm:rl.h
denied the motion. Then the attorneys
for Jack Williamson and Walter Wood-
ard made a motion to separate their
cases from that of Charley Davis, Chil-
lingworth also denied that motion, and
sl the trial date for March 9, 1942 &

The “Little Scottsbora Case”™ drified
to its dreary end on Monday, March 9,
1942 in the Palm Beach County Cireuit
Court Before Judge C. E. Chilling-
worth. The witnesses called by the
state included Sheriff Walter B, Clark;
Thepuiy Robert L, Clark; F. C, Maddox,
FPompano pelice chief at the time of the
murder: and Dr. G. C. MeClellan, who
had performed the post mortem exami-
nuation on Robert Daraey.

Two of the defendants, Jack Willi-
amson and Walter Woodard, offered to
plead guilty to second degree murder.
Charley Davis, against whom the state
had the strongest case, decided to take
his chanee with a trial, Judge Chil-
lingwaorth questioned Williamson and
Woadard separately and then refused
to plea bargain. The judge directed the
trial to proceed.

Lowis F, Maire attempted to intro

12 — Broward Legacy



duee evidence that Charley Davis had
ledd law officers to the place where
Robert Darsey’s pocketbook and
sonal papers were hidden, but a
defense objection, .lmig-e(.h:]]mmmrth
ruled that this bit of important evi-
dence was part of the confession and
was therefore inadmisaible. The de-
fense lawyers made a motion for a
directed verdict of not guilty, which
was granted, ™

After Judge Chillingworth pulled
down the curtain on this lengthy case,
Jack Williamson and Walter Woodard
said that they were going to Georgia,
Charley Davis said that he did not
know where he was going, All three
had judgment enough not to return to
Pompano. Izell Chambers, who was
fod invaelved in the final trial, remained
in the mental hoapital at Chatta-
hooches 5

The final outcome of the Darsey case
outraged many Broward Countians.
Although nine vears has elapsed since
the murder was committed, and Brow.
ard County, along with the rest of
the nation, was then ¢ in the
Second Waerld War, the fate of the Day-
pey defendants remained, at the time of
Judge Chillingworth's final decree, o
newsworthy and emotioncharged mat-
ter. The general consensus within the
county was that Izell Chambers, Char-
ley Davis, Jack Willismson, and Wal-
ter Woodard were guilty as charged
and had managed to slip through the
slow and cumbersome legal aystem 5

If many Broward Countians felt that
justice had been thwarted, the United
Btate Supreme Court chose to beliove
the defendants’ claims that their con-
fessions had been forced. The constitu-
tional prohibition against forced self
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. {'ﬁ: Lauderdole Dadly News, Janwary 12,

&, Thid,, Febraary 22, 14,

26, Diid., March 9, 1934,

incrimination should have been well
known to Broward County public offi-
cinle. State Attorney Lowis F, Maire
indicated that he was aware of it on the
morning of May 21, 1933, when he
asked ench defendant if force had been
used to oblain their confessions, Cir
et Judge George W, Tedder, Sr., indi-
cated that he was aware of it when he
asked each defendant the same gues-
tion at the time of the original trial. By
taking the defendanta” word that they
had been mistreated, the Supreme
Court justices sent a sbern warning to
prosecutors all neross the country: do
nod rely solely on confessions, Confies-
sions, whether forced or not, are not
absolutely binding, since they can
alwavs be repudiated. Defendarits can
always claim coercion, and the United
Siates Supreme Court might just be-
lieve them.
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